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JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 
Nevada Bar No. 003861 
601 S. 6th Street 
Las Vegas, NV 89101 
(702) 272-0406 
jim@jchristensenlaw.com 
Attorney for Daniel S. Simon 
 

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA 

  
EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST, and 
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC 

 

  Plaintiffs, 
 
 vs. 
 
LANGE PLUMBING, LLC; THE 
VIKING CORPORATION, a Michigan 
corporation; SUPPLY NETWORK, 
INC., dba VIKING SUPPLYNET, a 
Michigan Corporation; and DOES 1 
through 5 and ROE entities 6 through 
10; 
 
  Defendants. 

 Case No.: A-16-738444-C 
 Dept. No.: 10 
 
OPPOSITION TO THE SECOND 
MOTION TO RECONSIDER; 
COUNTER MOTION TO 
ADJUDICATE LIEN ON REMAND  
  
 Hearing date: 5.27.21 
 Hearing time: 9:30 a.m. 
  
 

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;  
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC 

 CONSOLIDATED WITH 

 
  Plaintiffs, 
 
 vs. 
 
DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW 
OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A 
PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION; 
DOES 1 through 10; and, ROE 
entities 1 through 10; 
 
  Defendants. 

 Case No.: A-18-767242-C 
 Dept. No.: 10 
  
 
  
  
 

Case Number: A-16-738444-C

Electronically Filed
5/13/2021 2:47 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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OPPOSITION TO THE SECOND MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION 

I. Relevant Procedural Overview 

 Over two years ago, this Court adjudicated the Simon lien and 

sanctioned the Edgeworths for bringing and maintaining their conversion 

complaint without reasonable grounds.  The Supreme Court affirmed in 

most respects with instructions to revisit the quantum meruit fee award to 

Simon and the amount of the sanction levied upon the Edgeworths.  The 

high court then denied the Edgeworths’ bid for rehearing.  Procedure 

relevant to the subject motions follows. 

 On December 30, 2020, the Supreme Court issued an appeal order 

affirming this Court in most respects; and an order finding the Simon 

petition for writ moot, apparently in light of the instructions on remand to 

revisit the quantum meruit fee award to Simon. 

On January 15, 2021, the Edgeworths filed a petition for rehearing.  

The Edgeworths again challenged the dismissal of the conversion 

complaint and the sanction order.  The petition did not follow the rules and 

was rejected. 

On January 25, 2021, the Supreme Court issued a Notice in Lieu of 

Remittitur. 

AA0834
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On January 26, 2021, the Supreme Court granted leave to the 

Edgeworths to file an untimely petition for rehearing.  The order granting 

leave to file the untimely petition was not copied to this Court. 

On March 16, 2021, per the instructions on remand, this Court issued 

the Amended Decision and Order Granting in Part and Denying in Part, 

Simon’s Motion for Attorney’s Fees and Costs (“Attorney Fee Order”).  This 

Court also issued an amended order adjudicating the lien. 

On March 18, 2021, rehearing was denied by the Supreme Court.  A 

corrected order denying rehearing followed on March 22, 2021. 

On March 31, 2021, the Edgeworths filed a motion for reconsideration 

in district court. 

On April 12, 2021, remitter was issued by the Supreme Court. 

On April 28, 2021, this Court issued the Third Amended Decision and 

Order on Motion to Adjudicate Lien (“Third Lien Order”). 

On May 3, 2021, the Edgeworths filed their second motion for 

reconsideration. 
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II. Summary of Arguments 

 The second Edgeworth motion for reconsideration addresses the 

Third Lien Order and the Attorney Fee Order.  Simon opposes the motion 

to reconsider the Third Lien Order, acknowledges the Attorney Fee Order 

must be refiled; and brings a counter motion to adjudicate the lien and/or 

reconsider the Third Lien Order regarding the quantum meruit fee award to 

Simon per the remand instructions.   

 A. The Third Lien Order 

 The Edgeworths’ second motion to reconsider the Third Lien Order is 

without merit.  The Edgeworths do not present adequate grounds for 

reconsideration. 

 First, the Edgeworths assert they are due reconsideration because 

they were deprived of “the right to reply” in support of their first motion for 

reconsideration.  The Edgeworths are incorrect.  The Edgeworths do not 

provide a citation to support the claim that the opportunity to reply is a 

fundamental right.  The Edgeworths did not make an offer of proof 

regarding the reply, and thus did not establish they suffered undue 

prejudice.  Nor did the Edgeworths provide authority that motion practice is 

required before the Court acts on the remand instructions.  In any event, 
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the Edgeworths have had ample notice and many opportunities to be heard 

on lien adjudication.  Process does not provide a basis for reconsideration.   

 Second, the Edgeworths argue for reconsideration by making the 

claim that a disagreement over the facts underlying the quantum meruit 

decision amounts to a clear error of law.  The argument is poor.  A 

disagreement over facts is not a clear error of law meriting reconsideration.  

The determination of attorney fees under quantum meruit is within the 

discretion of the district court.  As such, the Edgeworths are effectively 

foreclosed from relief via promotion of their own factual narrative under the 

abuse of discretion standard.  Further, the Edgeworths’ frivolous 

conversion narrative, which they have morphed into an equally frivolous 

extortion narrative in the current motion, was solidly rejected by this Court 

and the Supreme Court.  The Edgeworths did not provide the substantially 

different evidence required for reconsideration, they have merely served up 

different spin. 

 Finally, the Edgeworths complain about a scrivener’s error regarding 

costs owed.  In doing so, the Edgeworths note but fail to take to heart the 

“Costs Owed” section of the Third Lien Order which specifically states that 

costs were paid, and no costs are currently owed.  Specific language 

AA0837
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controls over general language.  Thus, there is no possibility of undue 

prejudice and no basis to reconsider the Third Lien Order is presented. 

 B. The Attorney Fee Order 

The Attorney Fee Order was issued before remittitur.  Accordingly, 

the order must be refiled.  The Edgeworths appear to have abandoned their 

challenge to the conservative amount of fees awarded.  As to Clark’s costs, 

Simon has already informed the Edgeworths that only the amount of the bill 

($2,520.00) will be sought.  Accordingly, while Simon does not oppose 

changing the cost number for Clark’s fees in the Attorney Fee Order, no 

prejudice will result to the Edgeworths regardless.   

C. Simon’s Counter Motion 

Whether the counter motion is more properly presented as a motion 

to adjudicate the lien on remand or as a motion to reconsider, Simon 

respectfully requests this Court to revisit its quantum meruit decision 

expressed in the Third Lien Order.  Simon requests that the Court abide by 

the finding affirmed on appeal that the implied contract was discharged and 

therefore, not enforce the implied payment term for work performed after 

September 19, 2017.  Re-adjudication and/or reconsideration on this point 

may be had because the use of an implied payment term of a discharged 

contract as controlling in a fee adjudication is a clear error of law. 
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Simon’s counter motion is well-supported by the uncontested 

declaration of Will Kemp, whom this Court has already recognized as an 

expert. 

IV. Rebuttal to the Edgeworths’ statement of facts and related 

argument 

 The Edgeworths’ factual arguments are inaccurate and contrary to 

the Court’s affirmed findings.  Because the facts are well known, only a 

brief response follows. 

 A. The Edgeworths have the case file. 

 The Edgeworths continue their false argument regarding the case file.  

During lien adjudication, everything Vannah requested was provided, but 

Vannah did not request the file.  (Ex. 1, Day 4 at 26.) 

In 2020, a different Edgeworth lawyer asked for the file and the file 

was given directly to Brian Edgeworth as requested.  (Ex. 2, Ex. 3, & Ex. 4.)  

As can be seen from the attached correspondence, there were certain 

matters that were not produced because they were covered by non-

disclosure agreements, etc.  The privileged items withheld did not present a 

problem until the Edgeworths filed their second motion for reconsideration 

when they apparently felt the need for an additional argument. 
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 After the Edgeworths filed their second motion for reconsideration, 

counsel spoke about the file.  Letters were exchanged and are attached. 

(Ex. 5 & 6.)  As can be seen from the Simon response, the allegations of 

stripping emails, etc., are farfetched. (Ex. 6.)   

 In addition, NRS 7.055 applies to a “discharged attorney”.  Before 

admitting to discharge at a point when the Edgeworths thought the change 

of course might benefit them, the Edgeworths had consistently denied they 

had discharged Simon, for example at the evidentiary hearing:   

MR. VANNAH:  Of course, he’s never been fired.  He’s still counsel of 
record.  He’s never been fired. 

 
(Ex. 1, Day 4 at 22:1-2.)  And before the Supreme Court: 

Neither the facts nor the law supports a finding of any sort of 
discharge of Simon by Appellants, constructive or otherwise. 

 
(Ex. 7, opening brief excerpt, at 10.)   

The Edgeworths wasted time and resources on their frivolous no 

discharge stance; therefore, new sanctions are warranted based on their 

recent admission that Simon really was discharged.  Capanna v. Orth, 134 

Nev. 888, 432 P.3d 726 (2018) (sanctions are appropriate when a claim or 

defense is maintained without reasonable grounds).  Rebutting the 

Edgeworths’ frivolous no discharge position wasted at least a day of the 
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evidentiary hearing, and many hours spent briefing the issue at the district 

court and appellate levels. 

B. The November 17 meeting 

 The Edgeworths’ description of the November 17 meeting is fanciful 

and rehashes claims made at the evidentiary hearing which the Court 

found wanting.  The latest version contains factual claims that are not in the 

findings and are not supported by citation to the record. 

The Edgeworths admitted six times in their opening appeal brief that 

they were not found to be credible.  (Ex. 7 at 11,12,15,18, & 28.)  The latest 

factual claims corroborate the many Edgeworth admissions that they are 

not credible. 

 C. The privileged Viking email of November 21 

 The November 21 email was sent between two different lawyers 

representing Viking; accordingly, Simon did not know its contents.  The 

Edgeworths did not disclose how they obtained a privileged email sent 

between Viking’s lawyers.  Further, the Edgeworths did not address how 

they propose the Court could consider this new proffer of evidence years 

after the evidentiary hearing ended. 
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Nevertheless, the email supports Simon.  Simon agrees that Viking 

was aware confidentiality was an issue and that the confidentiality term was 

removed after November 21. 

 D. The date of the Viking settlement and release terms   

 Continuing the lack of credibility theme, the Edgeworths argue: “all 

negotiations were complete by November 27”. (Bold and italics in 

original.)  (2nd Mot., at 12:21-22.)  Putting aside that the bolded factual 

assertion is not supported by what the cited record states, there is a larger 

problem in that the factual claim is contrary to the findings of this Court. 

 On November 19, 2018, the Court made finding of fact #13: 

 13. On the evening of November 15, 2017, the Edgeworths 
received the first settlement offer for their claims against the Viking 
Corporation (“Viking”).  However, the claims were not settled until on 
or after December 1, 2017. 

 
(Ex. 8 at 4:22-24, & Third Lien Order at F.F. #13 at 4:22-24.)  A good 

portion of the second motion for reconsideration dwells on factual claims 

contrary to the finding (see, e.g., 2nd Mot., at 4:5-6:11), while never 

mentioning or contrasting finding of fact #13 - which is now the law of the 

case. 

 The Edgeworths have taken so many bites at the evidentiary apple 

that it is down to the core. They do not get another. This issue is over.  
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 E. The Lange settlement 

 In a new brand-new factual claim, raised years after the evidentiary 

hearing, the Edgeworths accuse Simon of slow walking the Lange 

settlement.  The accusation is untimely and unfair, resolution of a complex 

case takes time.  Further, Simon had been fired by the clients, was being 

frivolously sued by his former clients, and was working via replacement 

counsel who acknowledged in open court he did not know what was going 

on: 

MR. VANNAH: If you take out the form and content, I don’t know 
anything about the case, and I want – I don’t know anything about the 
case – I mean, we’re not involved in a case.  You understand that, 
Teddy?  
 

 MR.PARKER:  I do.  

MR. VANNAH: We – we’re not involved a case in any way shape, or 
form.  
 

(Ex. 9, February 20, 2018 Transcript at 3:22-4:3.) 

In the November 19, 2018, Lien Order this Court found that Simon 

was due recognition for improving the position of his former clients.  (See, 

e.g., Ex. 8 at 19:19-20:1.)  This aspect of the Lien Order was not 

challenged on appeal and is now the law of the case.  The finding was 

repeated in the Third Lien Order.  (Third Lien Order at 20:8-17.)  The 

Edgeworth assertions are wholly without merit. 
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F. This Court took testimony regarding the work performed at 
the evidentiary hearing.  
 
The Edgeworths proclaim that the “only evidence in the record of 

work Simon claims to have performed post-discharge is set forth in the 

“super bill”.  (2nd Mot., at 9:24-25.)  The claim is not true.  The Court took 

days of testimony at the evidentiary hearing regarding work that was done, 

some of which is cited by the Court in the Third Lien Order. (See, e.g., 

Third Lien Order at 18-22.) 

Finally, the assertion that only simple acts remained to be addressed 

is belied by Vannah’s statements, acts, and emails.  Vannah openly 

admitted he was in deep water and needed Simon to close the case.  If 

Vannah, at $925 dollars an hour, does not feel competent to close out the 

case, then the work that remained is more than ministerial, just as this 

Court found. 

G. The Viking settlement drafts 

 The Edgeworths first raised a complaint over the Viking tender of 

settlement drafts, instead of a certified check, in their first motion for 

reconsideration, years after the evidentiary hearing.  The grievance is 

repeated in the second motion.  (2nd Mot., at 6:12-2.)  The picayune 

criticism would have been better left unraised because it underscores the 

weakness of the Edgeworths’ overall position. 
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 In addition to being untimely, the complaint is nonsensical.  Viking 

tendered settlement drafts in the proper amount which were deposited and 

cleared.  At worst, the Viking drafts can be seen as falling within the ambit 

of substitute performance - which is normally not a problem at least when 

the Edgeworths are not involved.  The Edgeworths and Vannah did not 

raise the settlement drafts as an issue years ago, and the settlement drafts 

should not be an issue to the Edgeworths and their latest counsel today.   

IV. Argument 

The Edgeworths did not provide an adequate basis for this Court to 

grant reconsideration of the Third Lien Order.  Reconsideration is rarely 

granted and only when there is considerably different evidence or a clear 

error.  Masonry & Tile Contractors Ass’n of S. Nevada v. Jolley, Urga & 

Wirth, Ltd., 113 Nev. 737, 741, 941 P.3d 486, 489 (1997) (reconsideration 

may be granted on rare occasion when there is “substantially different 

evidence … or the decision is clearly erroneous”).  

The Edgeworths’ argument they received inadequate process is 

unsupported and incorrect.  The Edgeworths merely rehash old factual 

arguments about the inferences to be had from the evidence, they do not 

present substantially different evidence.  Finally, the Edgeworths do not 
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present a clear error of law in the Third Lien Order.  Reconsideration is not 

warranted. 

 A. The Edgeworths received due process. 

 The Edgeworths claim they did not receive due process and are due 

reconsideration on that basis, because they only had a short time in which 

to file a reply.  (2nd Mot., at 2:27-3:7 & 10:18-19.)  The claim is 

unsupported, and the Edgeworths do not present cogent argument or 

relevant authority.  Hence, the argument can be ignored.  See, Edwards v. 

Emperor’s Garden Rest., 122 Nev. 317, 330 n. 38, 130 P.3d 1280, 1288 

n.38 (2006).  Similarly, the Edgeworths do not provide argument or 

authority that additional briefing was contemplated or required on remand. 

(Ibid.) 

 Importantly, the Edgeworths do not present an offer of the reply 

arguments they were deprived of or explain how a reply would have 

changed the outcome.  

In this case, there were multiple filings and hearings regarding 

adjudication of the lien.  There was a five-day evidentiary hearing and post 

hearing arguments and motion practice.  There was an appeal.  The 

Edgeworths have had more than sufficient notice and a generous 

opportunity to be heard.  See, e.g., Callie v. Bowling, 123 Nev. 181, 160 
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P.3d 878 (2007) (procedural due process is afforded when a party has 

notice and an opportunity to be heard).  

The Edgeworths request for reconsideration based on a lack of due 

process is without merit. 

B. The Edgeworths’ latest quantum meruit arguments merely 
rehash or spin prior arguments and evidence. 

 
The Edgeworths argue they are due reconsideration because the 

Court made a poor factual decision.  The argument does not raise to the 

level required for a district court to grant reconsideration.  Masonry & Tile 

Contractors Ass’n of S. Nevada, 113 Nev. 737, 741, 941 P.3d 486, 489 

(reconsideration may be granted on rare occasion when there is 

“substantially different evidence … or the decision is clearly erroneous”). 

In support of their request for reconsideration, the Edgeworths argue 

their latest factual narrative.  However, the latest narrative is not based on 

substantially different evidence, it is based on the latest spin.  The 

Edgeworths do not explain how this Court can ignore its own factual 

findings which are now law of the case and now find, for example, that 

Simon “slow walked” the Lange settlement.1  

 
1 At the hearing of 2/20/2018, attorney Teddy Parker explained how adding 
Vannah to the mix caused some extra steps and delay.  (Ex. 9.)  
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The Edgeworths’ arguments are exposed by their return yet again to 

the use of ad hominin attacks against Simon.  Just as the claim of 

conversion against Simon was frivolous, so too is the claim of extortion.  An 

attorney is due a reasonable fee.  NRS 18.015.  An attorney may file a lien 

when there is a fee dispute.  NRS 18.015.  The use of a lien is not an 

ethical violation.  NRS 18.015(5).  An attorney can take steps to protect 

themselves and/or to secure a reasonable fee for their work.  NRS 18.015 

& NRPC 1.16(b)(6).  The only limit is an attorney cannot seek an 

unreasonable fee.  NRCP 1.5.  The expert testimony of Will Kemp stands 

unrebutted, the fee sought by Simon is reasonable under the market 

approach.  The latest frivolous accusation is simply a continuation of the 

Edgeworths desire to “punish” Simon. 

Here, this Court already found that Simon legitimately used a 

statutory attorney lien to seek a reasonable fee.  This Court already found 

that Simon’s work was exceptional, and the result obtained was impressive. 

Yet, the Edgeworths frivolously sued Simon for conversion claiming Simon 

was owed nothing - even though they admitted to already receiving more 

money than the claim was worth, and that Simon was in fact owed fees and 

costs.  The ill placed trust argument is Simons to use, not the Edgeworths. 
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The Edgeworths did not present substantially different facts, nor did 

they demonstrate clear error.  There is no basis for reconsideration. 

C. The cost award 

The Edgeworths protest the cost language in the conclusion of the 

Third Lien Order as grounds for reconsideration.  Yet, the Edgeworths 

acknowledge that the costs are correctly found as paid on page 18 of the 

same order.  In so doing the Edgeworths establish that there is no undue 

prejudice.  The order’s specific and detailed language on page 18 controls 

over the general language in the conclusion. 

  D. The Attorney Fee Order 

 The Attorney Fee Order needs to be re-filed.  Although Simon will 

only seek the amount Clark billed in any event, Simon has no objection to 

the correction of the amount of costs related to Clark’s fees, $2,520.00.   

VI. Conclusion 

 The motion for reconsideration is without merit.  Simon requests the 

motion be denied and the Edgeworths sanctioned for needlessly extending 

this case. 
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COUNTER MOTION TO ADJUDICATE LIEN ON 

REMAND/RECONSIDERATION 

I. Introduction to the Counter Motion 

 On December 30, 2020, the Supreme Court issued two orders 

addressing the Edgeworth appeal and the Simon writ petition.  The appeal 

order affirmed this Court in all but two respects.  The appeal order 

remanded the case with instructions to re-address the quantum meruit 

award of fees to Simon and to re-address the amount of fees assessed as 

a sanction against the Edgeworths for pursuit of their frivolous conversion 

complaint.  In the writ order, the Simon petition on the manner of 

calculation of quantum meruit for outstanding fees due at the time of 

discharge was denied as moot, apparently in consideration of the 

instructions on remand contained in the appeal order. 

 Simon moves for adjudication of the lien/reconsideration regarding 

the calculation of the quantum meruit fee award per the remand 

instructions and the Brunzell factors as stated in the attached declaration of 

Will Kemp. 
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II. The Court may Reconsider the Quantum Meruit Award on a 

Claim of Clear Legal Error. 

 The Court found that Simon worked for the Edgeworths on the 

sprinkler case on an implied in fact contract; and, that Simon was 

discharged from the contract on November 29, 2017.  (Third Lien Order at 

9:1-9 & 12:16-17.) 

The Court found that Simon was paid under the implied contract 

through September 19, 2017, and was not paid for considerable work that 

came after September 19.  (Third Lien Order at 14:26-15:3.) 

 This Court also concluded that: 

When a lawyer is discharged by the client, the lawyer is no longer 
compensated under the discharged/breached/repudiated contract, 
but is paid based on quantum meruit.  (Citations omitted.) 

 
(Third Lien Order at 18:5-6.)  The conclusion coincides with NRS 18.015(2) 

and case law.  The conclusion and the findings were affirmed on appeal.  

Edgeworth Family Trust, 477 P.3d 1129 (table) 2020 WL 7828800. 

However, the payment term of the repudiated implied contract was 

enforced for the time worked from September 19 through November 29, 

2017.  Retroactive enforcement of the payment term of a discharged or 

repudiated contract is not consistent with the finding quoted above, NRS 

18.015(2) or case law.  The conflict with established law creates clear error 
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needed under Masonry & Tile Contractors Ass’n of S. Nevada, 113 Nev. 

737, 741, 941 P.3d 486, 489, for reconsideration.  Simon respectfully 

submits that the correct path is to use quantum meruit as the measure to 

compensate Simon for work performed from the date of September 19, 

2017 forward. 

A. When a fee contract is terminated by the client, the amount of 
the outstanding fee due the attorney is determined by quantum 
meruit. 
 

 The Edgeworths discharged Simon on November 29, 2017.  Thus, 

the fee contract was repudiated as of that date.  The Edgeworths 

terminated the fee contract before the lien was served, before funds were 

paid and before Simon was paid for work dating from September 19, 2017. 

Therefore, the implied fee contract had been repudiated and was not 

enforceable when the lien was adjudicated, and the amount Simon should 

be paid from September 19 is not controlled by the repudiated implied 

contract. 

  When a lawyer is discharged by the client, the lawyer is no longer 

compensated under the discharged contract but is paid based on quantum 

merit.  Edgeworth Family Trust, 477 P.3d 1129 (table) 2020 WL 7828800; 

Golightly v. Gassner, 281 P.3d 1176 (Nev. 2009) (unreported) (discharged 

attorney paid by quantum merit rather than by contingency); citing, Gordon 
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v. Stewart, 324 P.3d 234 (1958) (attorney paid in quantum merit after client 

breach of agreement); and, Cooke v. Gove, 114 P.2d 87 (Nev. 1941)(fees 

awarded in quantum merit when there was no agreement).  

 This Court cited Rosenberg in concluding the Edgeworths fired 

Simon. Rosenberg v. Calderon Automation, Inc., 1986 Ohio App. LEXIS 

5460 (1986).  In Rosenberg, Calderon stopped all communication with his 

lawyer, Rosenberg, on the eve of a settlement. Rosenberg sought his fees. 

The Rosenberg court found that Rosenberg was constructively 

discharged when Calderon stopped speaking with the lawyer.  On the 

question of compensation, the court found that termination of a contract by 

a party after part performance of the other party entitles the performing 

party to elect to recover the value of the labor performed irrespective of the 

contract price. Id., at *19.  In other words, the lawyer is not held to the 

payment term of the repudiated contract, but rather receives a reasonable 

fee under quantum meruit. 

The Edgeworths did not admit to firing Simon even after they stopped 

communication and then frivolously sued for conversion. Even as late as 

the appeal, the Edgeworths denied firing Simon in a transparent gambit to 

avoid a reasonable fee under quantum meruit.  The law is clear that 

because Simon was fired, Simon’s outstanding fee for the work performed 
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on the sprinkler case after September 19, 2017, is set by quantum meruit, 

the reasonable value of services rendered as per NRS 18.015(1).  Simon 

respectfully requests this Court use quantum meruit to reach the attorney 

fee due Simon for work performed after September 19, instead of 

retroactively applying the payment term of the discharged fee contract. 

B. The quantum meruit award 

Will Kemp testified as an expert on product defect litigation, the 

prevailing market rate for such litigation in the community2, and the method 

of determination of a reasonable fee for work performed on a product case 

in Las Vegas.  Mr. Kemp’s credentials are well known, and his opinion was 

beyond question. 

The Edgeworths have gone to ridiculous lengths to punish Simon and 

extend this dispute, such as hiring counsel at $925 an hour and filing a 

frivolous complaint.  Yet even the Edgeworths did not attempt an attack on 

Mr. Kemp; his opinion was so solid, it stood unrebutted.  

Mr. Kemp has provided a declaration in which he reviewed his 

unrebutted opinion in the light of the Supreme Court orders.  (Ex. 10)  Mr. 

Kemp responded to the Supreme Court’s instructions and explained how 

 
2 The Edgeworths also rely upon the prevailing market rate as a metric for 
quantum meruit, although they misapply the standard.  1st Mot., at 21:10-
21. 
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his opinion is in agreement.  Mr. Kemp also reviewed the Brunzell factors 

and concluded that a reasonable fee under the prevailing market rate of the 

community for product liability trial counsel from September 19, 2017, 

through February of 2018, is $2,072,393.75.  

III. Conclusion 

 Simon respectfully suggests the Court make a reasonable fee award 

based on the market rate under quantum meruit for the work performed 

following September 19, 2017, through February of 2018, in accord with 

the unrefuted opinion of Will Kemp, which is consistent with the Supreme 

Court’s order of remand. 

 DATED this 13th  day of May 2021.  

  /s/ James R. Christensen  

   JAMES CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 
 Nevada Bar No. 003861 
   601 S. 6th Street 
   Las Vegas, NV 89101 
  (702) 272-0406 
  (702) 272-0415 
  jim@jchristensenlaw.com 
  Attorney for Daniel S. Simon 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I CERTIFY SERVICE of the foregoing Opposition and Request for 

Sanctions; Countermotion was made by electronic service (via Odyssey) 

this 13th day of May 2021, to all parties currently shown on the Court’s E-

Service List. 

      /s/ Dawn Christensen   

an employee of  
JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN 
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INTRODUCTION

Reconsideration is Appropriate Because the Court did not Follow the
Supreme Court's Mandate in Issuing its Third Lien Order.

The Third Lien Order does not adhere to the Supreme Court's

mandate on remand and therefore is clearly erroneous. M.asonry and Tile

Contractors Ass'n of Southern Nevada v. ]olley, Urga &' Wirth, Ltd., 113 Nev.

737, 741, 941 P.2d 486, 489 (1997). This case was remanded to this Court for

the sole purpose of entering "further findings regarding the basis of the

[quantum meruit] award." Sup. Ct. Order at 10. This limited purpose is

explained on pages 3 - 5 of the Supreme Court's decision. The Supreme

Court affirmed this Court's finding that "the Edgeworths constructively

discharged Simon on November 29" Id. at 4 (emphasis added). The Supreme

Court also affirmed that Simon "was entitled to quantum meruitfor work

done after the constructive discharge." id. (emphasis added), but declared

that the Court "failed to make findings" regarding the post-discharge work

on or after November 30. The Supreme Court acknowledged that Simon's

"super bill" was evidence "that Simon and his associates performed work

after the constructive discharge," id. at 5, but said the Court erred by not

describing how that work was used to come up with a quantum meruit fee

of $200,000 or how the fee would be reasonable for work done post-

discharge, which at Simon's "court-approved" rate of $550 per hour that he

used to bill the Edgeworths pre-discharge would amount to less than

$34,000.

Rather than address this substantive issue raised in the Edgeworths'

motion, Simon has merely cut and pasted the same arguments he previously
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made in his April 13 Opposition and Countermotion, which the Court

considered and rejected in issuing its April 19 Third Lien Order.1

Simon's discharge on November 29 is established as a matter of law/

irrespective of what the parties may have contended prior to the Court

establishing this finding, and the Supreme Court' subsequent affirmance

The Edgeworths' subjective intent or beliefs imagined by Simon in his

opposition are of no consequence and do not bear on this motion for

reconsideration. Simon's request for sanctions on the Edgeworths based on a

"change of position" that acknowledges and accepts the discharge date as

November 29 (Opp'n at 8-9) is therefore frivolous.

Simon's Opposition is Not Faithful to the Supreme Court's Mandate and
Addresses False Issues that are Outside the Scope of Remand

A. The Supreme Court Did Not Cause the "Remittitur" Confusion.

Simon mistakenly attempts to apply the "Notice in Lieu of Remittitur"

issued in his writ petition case (Case No. 79821), as applicable to the two

consolidated appeals that remained pending in the Supreme Court until

remittitur issued on April 12, 2021. Opp'n at 2; compare Ex. MM, Excerpts of

Docket for Writ Petition (NSC 79821) (attached hereto) with Ex. NN,

Excerpts of Docket for Appeal (NSC 77678); (attached hereto) and Ex. 00,

Excerpts of Docket for Appeal (NSC 77176); (attached hereto) see also Ex. PP,

Notice in Lieu of Remittitur in Writ Petition (attached hereto) in an infirm

attempt to reopen and enlarge the quantum meruit period this Court has

established and the Supreme Court has affirmed.

' The identical order referenced as the April 19, 2001 Amended Lien

Order in the motion and this reply was filed in the consolidated case, A-16-

738444-C, on April 28, 2021. For the sake of clarity, this motion is directed to
the substance of that Order, entered both on April 19 and April 28, 2021.

3
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He argues that meritless proposition from the irrelevant fact that the

Supreme Court allowed the Edgeworths to petition for rehearing without

informing this court that it was doing so. Opp'n at 2. But because

jurisdiction of this case had not yet been returned to the District Court, there

was no reason for the Supreme Court to inform the Court of its decision to

entertain the Edgeworths' petition for rehearing. NRAP 41(a)(l). Thus, this

makes Simon's entire timeline on page 3 of his opposition meaningless due

to his sleight-of-hand attempt to apply the notice in lieu of remittitur issued

in his writ case to the other pending cases (which includes this case) in the

Supreme Court. It is uncontroverted that in this case, remittitur issued on

April 12, 2021, and was received by the District Court on April 13, 2021. Ex

QQ, Remittitur/ (attached hereto) see also Opp'n at 3. The District Court was

therefore without jurisdiction until that date.

B. Simon's Opposition Does not Address the Basis for Reconsideration.

Just as he is mistaken about the jurisdiction issue he argues, Simon is

also mistaken about the basis for reconsideration presented by the

Edgeworths. Simon concedes the Attorney Fee Order should be reissued

and corrected (Opp'n at 6). For this reason, a proposed order is attached

hereto as Exhibit SS and will be electronically submitted to the Court.

1. Cutting Off the Edgeworths' Reply Before the Third Lzen Order Was
Issued is Not the Basis for Reconsideration of the Third Order.

The Edgeworths at no time have asserted that "they are due

reconsideration because they were deprived of 'the right to reply' in support

of their first motion for reconsideration." Opp'n at 4. Nor have the

Edgeworths suggested that "motion practice is required before the Court

acts on the remand instructions." Id. The Edgeworths merely stated a fact,

that since briefing was ongoing and no reason to truncate it existed, their

right to reply in support of their earlier motion, as the local rules allow,

should not have been denied. EDCR 2.20(g).

4
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2. This Motion for Reconsideration Does Not Seek to Correct Errors of Fact.

Likewise, Simon's contention that reconsideration is being sought

based "on a disagreement over the facts" is also wholly mistaken. Opp'n at

5. The Court has discretion to determine the reasonable value of fees

awarded under a quantum meruit theory but, as the Supreme Court pointed

out, that discretion is not unlimited; the Court must explain the basis and

reasonableness of the award. The Supreme Court said:

[w]e agree with the Edgeworths that the district court abused its
discretion in awarding ^$200,000 in quantum. meruit without
making findings regarding the work Simon performed after the
constructive discharge.

Sup. Ct. Order at 4.

Simon does not want to be bound by the work he described in his

"super bill" previously submitted to the Court. He wishes to avoid

discussion of the work he says he performed after the constructive discharge

period. See, e.g. Sup. Ct. Order at 5 (recognizing that "[a]lthough there is

evidence in the record that Simon and his associates performed work after

the constructive discharge, the district court did not explain how it used that

evidence to calculate that award.").

3. Scrivner Errors Are Appropriately Addressed on Reconsideration.

Simon faults the Edgeworths' request that the Court correct what they

presumed was a clerical error in adding previously paid costs into the final

award. Simon acknowledges that the costs were paid, but contends that

having them added into a judgment is of no moment, because he would never

seek to collect on that portion of the judgment. Respectfully, given the nature

of this case and the over three years of contentious litigation the Edgeworths

have endured to resolve the amount Simon is owed/ they cannot be faulted

AA0942
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for seeking clarity from the Court instead of trusting Simon's word about

what he will or will not attempt to collect.

C. The Opposition Presents Issues Not Before the Court and Does Not
Give Effect to Simon's Testimony to this Court.

Simon's cut-and-paste job in this opposition from his earlier

opposition for reconsideration of the Second Lien order is also evident by

the fact his brief includes issues not even raised in the pending motion for

reconsideration, such as the alleged "description of the November 17

meeting," Opp'n at 9, which the instant motion did not even mention. The

November 21 email he brings up was obtained from counsel in the

underlying defect litigation and was/ in fact, part of the court record in the

March 30, 2021 motion for reconsideration. While Simon glib ly contends the

email supports him because he "agrees that Viking was aware

confidentiality was an issue," he conveniently side steps addressing how

Viking could have been aware of confidentiality being an issue unless drafts

were circulated to Simon prior to the November 21 exchange.

The Court should also dismiss as disingenuous the Opposition's

attempt to disavow or substantially recharacterize Simon's plain testimony

in Court. His plain unqualified testimony establishes that all negotiations

with Viking were complete on November 27. Mot. at 12:21-22. In response

to direct questions from the Court, Simon testified the Viking Settlement

Agreement was substantively finished before November 30:

SIMON: Yeah . .. I get back on... 11/27.

COURT: And you got the release on 11/277

SIMON: Right in that range, yeah. It was - it was
before I got the Letter of Direction, and I was out of
the case.
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SIMON:... So right when I get back there was
probably the, you know, proposed release. And so, I
went over to the office with Mr. Henriod, who was
Viking counsel, and I have a great relationship with
him, and we basically just hammered out the terms
of the release right there. And then I was done, I was
out of it.

THE COURT: Okay, but you hammered out the
terms of the release of that final agreement?

SIMON: Before I was fired, yeah.

THE COURT: Okay, so this is before 11-30?

SIMON: Yes.

Ex. GG to 5/3/21 Mot. for Recon. at 15-17.

Simon's testimony on day 3 also confirms beyond reasonable doubt

that all terms of the Viking Settlement had been negotiated and were known

to him before he sent his new fee demand to the Edgeworths on November

27, 2017:

THE COURT: Yeah, Thanksgiving would have been
the 23rd, so that following Monday the 27th.

THE WITNESS: Okay, So when I got back from that,
obviously I went - hard to work on all aspects of the
Edgeworth case. I was, you know, negotiating that
(Confidentiality Clause) out, and THEN obviously
preparing my letter and the proposed retainer that I
sent to them [Edgeworths] attaclied to the letter.

THE COURT: But when you are negotiating the
removal of the confidentiality agreement in the
Viking Settlement, you have no—had you been made
aware of that point that they [Edgeworths] had
spoken with Mr. Vannah's office.

WITNESS: No.

Transcript: 218: 8-13; 219: 4-8
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Ex. TT (Day 3 of Evidentiary Hearing, August 29,
2018). (Attached hereto)

These excerpts of Simon's sworn testimony show that he was

untruthful when he sent the Edgeworths his new-fee letter on November 27

and represented to them that "[t]here is also a lot of work left to be done."

He was done negotiating settlement with Viking at that time.

That Simon now finds this sworn testimony inconvenient because it

does not support his claim that he is due $200,000, or more, for his non-

substantive work post November 29, once he knew that the Edgeworths had

retained Vannah, which confirms that his relationship with the Edgeworths

had broken down and that Vannah would take over. This is no reason to

permit Simon to rewrite history to exclude his testimony. Opp'n at 10.

Furthermore, his testimony that all terms were negotiated by November 27,

and that the agreement was not ultimately signed until December 1 is

consistent with the Edgeworths' contention that Simon was slow-walking

the final settlement agreement while he tried to coerce the Edgeworths to

sign the fee agreement he prepared seeking a fee much higher than the fee

he had negotiated with the Edgeworths and been paid. It is also consistent

with Finding of Fact #13, and with the statements in the motion (Mot. at 12).

1. The Opposition Asks this Court to Disregard Established Facts for Which
Simon is Responsible.

Likewise, the fact the principal terms of the Lange Plumbing

settlement were final by November 30 is established by Simon's own hand.

Ex. EE to 5/3/21 Mot. for Recon. The only revisionist here is Simon. While

2 Simon's opposition misquotes the Court's actual finding, which says
"On the evening of November 15, 2017, the Edgeworth's received the first
settlement offer for their claims against the Viking Corporation ("Viking")

Finding of Fact 13. However, the claims were not settled until on or about
December 1, 2017)" Third Am. Lien order at 4. It does not say "on or after" as

Simon says. Opp'n at 10.

8
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complex litigation may take time, memorializing an agreement reached does

not. The fact the Lange agreement signed in February still contains the

December dates is proof that very little remained to be done after

November 30. Furthermore, Simon's contention he "was being frivolously

sued by his former clients," Opp'n at 11, ignores the fact the initial suit

against him was not even filed until January 8, 2018, long after the Lange

settlement agreement should have been finalized.

Simon would also have the District Court disregard the "super bill" he

painstakingly created in 2018 from. his own records; which demonstrate that

little, if any, substantive work remained for him to do, especially since he

acknowledges it was Vannah and not Simon that advised the clients on the

settlements after November 29. See Ex. JJ, KK, and LL to 5/3/21 Mot. for

Recon.; see also Ex. RR, (attached hereto) Excerpt 08-27-17 Hrg. Tr. at 75-76.

The Supreme Court recognized Simon submitted this evidence of

work performed after the discharge period, but found that valuing it at

$200,000 was an abuse of discretion because the District Court "did not

explain how it used that evidence to calculate its [quantum meruit] award."

Nev. Sup. Ct. Order at 5.

Interestingly, though Simon now disputes that the "super bill" is the

only evidence in the record of the work that was done post-discharge, and

supports that contention by saying testimony regarding the post-discharge

work performed was presented at the evidentiary hearing, he does not

point to a single example of work performed beyond that outlined in his

"super bill." This calculated omission is likely meant to discourage focus on

the extremely limited nature of his post-discharge work.

3 Simon's contention that Vannah did "not feel competent to close out

the case" is unsupported, and should not be considered/ as is his reference to

a finding on that point that he attributes to the Court, but which is not in the

Court's order. Opp'n at 12:15-18.
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Likewise, Simon's criticism about the certified checks issue misses the

point. The Edgeworths raised this issue as an example of how Simon slow-

walked the settlements and confirms that he was offered uncertified checks

by Viking on December 12 in time for the checks to clear by the agreed

payment date, a fact he did not share with the Edgeworths. Simon cannot

(legitimately) now complain that the Edgeworths did not raise this issue

earlier. Indeed, had Simon produced the complete case file the Edgeworths

requested—instead of stripping the attachments from the December 12,

2017, email he produced to the Edgeworths—they would had have an

opportunity to raise the issue earlier.

As to the Lange Plumbing settlement, Simon's reliance on the finding

that he "improv[ed] the position of his former clients" misses the point: even

if that were true, his work necessarily took place before November 30, when

he announced the result of his efforts. Ex. EE to 5/3/21 Mot. for Recon. The

District Court made a factual finding that the Edgeworths signed the

consent to settle the Lange claim for $100,000 on December 7, 2017. Nov. 19,

2018 Order on NRCP 12(b)(5) Mot. to Dismiss at 5, Finding of Fact #23.

Against the backdrop of these facts, Simon now wishes to revise and

enlarge his role in the finalizing settlements after November 29. Opp'n at 10.

But remember, however, when establishing the circumstances of his

termination, Simon went to great lengths to show that it was Vannah, not

Simon, who was advising the Edgeworths on the Viking and Lange

settlements after November 29, 2017. See e.g., Ex. RR at 75-76.

2. The Record Before the Court Does Not Support Awarding Simon $200,000
for Post-Discharge Work.

Although Simon would prefer that this Court not distinguish between

or closely examine his pre- and post -discharge work because doing so would

expose the lack of substance behind his efforts to exaggerate the value of his

post-discharge work, the Supreme Court's mandate requires exactly that.

10
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The Supreme Court specifically held that the value of Simon's quantum

meruit award has to be reasonable based only on his post-discharge work,

because he has already been compensated for pre-discharge work under the

implied contract found by the District Court. Nev. Sup. Ct. Order at 5

(recognizing the district court failed to "describe the work Simon performed

after the constructive discharge" and questioning the District Court's

application of the Brunzell factors because, "although it stated that it was

applying the Brunzell factors for work performed only after the constructive

discharge, much of the Court's analysis focused on Simon's work

throughout the entire litigation."). Any of Simon's negotiations or other

efforts that led to an improved position in settling the Lange Plumbing

claims necessarily took place before November 30; they cannot be

considered when evaluating the reasonableness of his quantum meruit award

for services on or after November 30. Id. (stating that the District Court

findings "referencing work performed before the constructive discharge, for

which Simon had already been compensated under the terms of the implied

contract, cannot form the basis of a quantum meruit award." (emphasis

added)).

Simon had ample opportunity to memorialize his efforts in his billing/

and he elicited exhaustive testimony as to the great lengths his office went to

capture all of the time expended into his "super bill," which now is the only

evidence in the record of his post-discharge work. Ex. L to 5/13/21 Mot. to

Release Funds and Produce Complete Client File. The Court should not now

permit Simon to modify and embellish that record with work he failed to

memorialize in the billing he offered to the Court. As detailed in the instant

motion at 13:16 - 16:12, the nature of the work performed post-discharge is

not complex and did not require specialized skills; at most, the reasonable

value of that work is $34,000.

11
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D. Simon's Efforts to Enlarge the Quantum Meruit Period Are Contrary
to the Supreme Court's Mandate.

Although Simon inappropriately turns to the law of the case doctrine

to avoid having the Court consider uncontested evidence that he now deems

unhelpful and wishes to jettison, including his own testimony that all

negotiations on the Viking settlement were complete by November 27,

Simon now asks the Court to disregard the law of the case to enlarge the

quantum meruit period back to September 19,2017.

That issue, however, has been decided and affirmed by the Supreme

Court and is binding on Simon and this Court. Absent an extraordinary

showing that following the law of the case and honoring the Supreme

Court's mandate would result in a catastrophic manifest injustice, the issues

raised by Simon cannot be relitigated. Hsu v. County of dark, 123 Nev. 625,

631,173 P.3d 724, 729 (2007).

Here, Simon offers no legally sound basis for this Court to indulge him

to revise history to serve only himself. His argument is based only on the

same revised opinion of Will Kemp submitted with his April 13, 2021

opposition, which the Court has already considered and rejected in issuing

its Third Lien Order. The Supreme Court's decision conclusively sets the

boundaries for the quantum meruit period. It affirmed the District Court's

finding that Simon was discharged on November 29, 2017, and that he was

entitled to the reasonable value of his services from November 30 forward.

Nev. Sup. Ct. Order at 3-4. The quantum meruit period has been conclusively

decided and is now closed.

E. Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons, as well as those set forth in the Motion, the

Edgeworths respectfully ask that the Court reconsider its Third Lien Order

and, consistent with the Supreme Court's mandate, describe the work Simon

performed pos ^-discharge that is the basis for its award, and analyze how

12
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$200,000 could be considered reasonable under the Brunzell factors or

otherwise, given that Simon's own testimony shows he was not truthful in

describing when and what he did to the Edgeworths, in a self-serving effort

to put pressure on them. for more money. Under these circumstances, the

Edgeworths respectfully submit that Simon's own valuation of his quantum

meruit time at $34,000 would be more than generous for his minimal post-

discharge services.

MORRIS LAW GROUP

By: /s/ STEVE MORRIS
Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste. B4

Las Vegas, Nevada 89106

Attorneys for Defendants
Edgeworth Family Trust and
American Grating, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b) and NEFCR 9, I certify that I am

an employee of MORRIS LAW GROUP, and that I caused the following to

be served via the Court's mandatory e-filing and service system to those

persons designated by the parties in the E-Service Master list for the above-

referenced matter: REPLY ISO PLAINTIFFS' RENEWED MOTION FOR

RECONSIDERATION OF AMENDED DECISION AND ORDER

GRANTING IN PART AND DENYING IN PART SIMON'S MOTION FOR

ATTORNEYS FEES AND COSTS, and MOTION FOR RECONSIDERATION

OF THIRD AMENDED DECISION AND ORDER ON MOTION TO

ADJUDICATE LIEN.

DATED this 20th day of May,2021.

By: /S/TRACIK.BAEZ
An employee of NIorris Law Group
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Filed Appendix to Petition for Writ - Voiume 1 of 9. (SC)

Fiied Appendix to Petition for Writ - Volume 2 of 9. (SC)

Filed Appendix to Petition for Writ - Volume 3 of 9. (SC)

Pending? Document

19-43116

19-43117

19-43118

19-43119

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=59CA7180E1288823EE53B95A5140FB29?cs]ID=56880 1/4
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5/17/2021

02/14/2020 Brief

03/05/2020 Motion

03/16/2020 Order/Procedurai

03/28/2020 Appendix

03/28/2020 Brief

03/30/2020 Case Status Update

09/24/2020 Order/Procedural

12/28/2020 Order/Procedural

12/30/2020 Other

12/30/2020 Order/Dispositiona!

01/25/2021 Remittitur

01,25/2021 Case Status U pdate

79821: Case View

Filed Appellant's Repiy Brief, Answering Brief to Cross
Appeal, Answer to Writ. and Response to Amicus Brief.
Nos. 77678/78176/79821. (SC)

Filed Respondent/Cross-Appellants' Motion for Extension

of Time for Filing of Reply Brief on Cross-Appea! and
Reply in Support of Writ Petition. Nos.
77678/78176/79821. (SC)

Fifed Order Granting Motion. The Law Office of Daniel S.
Simon and Daniel S. Simon shall have until April 16, 2020,
to fiie and serve a combined reply brief on cross-appeai
and reply in support of the petition for a writ of mandamus.

NQS. 77678/78176/79821. (SC).

Filed Respondent's/PetiSioner's Appendix to Reply. Nos.
77678/78176/79821 (SC)

Filed Reply Brief on Cross-Appeai and Reply in Support of
Petition for Writ of Mandamus.Nos. 77678/78176/79821.
(SC)
Briefing CompietedfTo Screening.Nos.

77678/78176/79821. (SC)
Filed Order of Voluntary Recusa! for Justice Silver.
Pursuant to NCJC Rule 2.11(A), ! recuse myself from
participation in this matter based on my friendship with
Daniel Simon and his family. Nos. 77678/78176/79821
(SC)
Red Order. On April 3, 2019, this court entered an order

consolidating these matters for all appellate purposes.
Upon further consideration, we conclude that consolidation
of No- 79821 with Nos. 77678 and 78176 is not warranted.

Accordingly, we direct the clerk of this court to
deconsolidate Docket No. 79821. Nos.

77678/78176/79821. (SC)

Justice Abbi Silver disqualified from participation in this
matter. Disqualification Reason: Voluntary Recusal. (SC)

Filed Order Denying Petition. "ORDER the petition
DENIED." fn1 fThe Honorable Ron Paraguirre, Justice,

and the Honorable Abbi Silver, Justice, did not participate
in the decision of this matter.] EN BANG

Issued Notice in Lieu of Remittitur. (SC)

Notice in Lieu of Remittitur Issued/Case Closed. (SC)

20-06285

20-08846

20-10199

20-11932

20-11933

20-35146

20-46675

20-46932

21-02217

Combined Case View

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=59CA7180E1288823EE53B95A5140FB29?csllD=56880 4/4
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EXHIBIT NN
Excerpts of Docket for Appeal (NSC 77678)
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5/17/2021 77678: Case View

HS¥:3.3ii

Apyulfate CQyrts

appellate C^iss Ncin^gsment System

Cases

G.sss s-sa^h

Paryetpa^ :§sar'sfa

Find Case...

Disclaimer: The information and documents available here should not be relied upon as an official record of action.

Only filed documents can be viewed. Some documents received in a case may not be available for viewing.

Some documents originating from a lower court, including records and appendices, may not be available for viewing.

For official records, please contact the Clerk of the Supreme Court of Nevada at (775) 684-1600.

Sass Mws'eSaw': 1

Short Caption:

Consolidated:

Lower Court
Case(S):

Disqualifications:

Replacement:

To SP/Judge:

Orai Argument:

Submission Date:

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TR. VS. SIMON C/W
78176

77678*, 78176

dark Co. - Eighth Judicial District - A738444

Silver

12/24/2018/Nitz.Dana

Court:

Related Case(s):

Ciassification:

Case Status:

Panel Assigned:

SP Status:

Oral Argument
Location:

How Submitted:

Supreme Court

78176,79821,82058

Civil Appeal - General - Other

Remittitur Issued/Case Closed

En Banc

Completed

<r pS^rf ^Sii.iHfi^SSSiW

Etesi;®! E((ii£fes

Date Type Description Pending? Document

Filing Fee due for Appeal. (SC)

Fiied Notice of Appeal. Appeal docketed in the Supreme
Court this day. (SC)

Issued Notice to Pay Supreme Court Filing Fee. No action
will be taken on this matter untii filing fee is paid. Due
Date: 10 days. (SC)

Filing Fee Paid. $250.00 from Robert D Vannah. Check
no. 4960. (SC)

Issued Notice of Referral to Settlement Program. This
appeal may be assigned to She settlement program.

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=9429E2A915CCE12F648B7FA34829C8F5?csl]D=52945

12/17/2018 Filing Fee

12/17/2018 Notice of Appeal Documents

12/17/2018 Notice^Outgoing

12/20/2018 Filing Fee

12/20/2018 Notice/Outgoing

18-

909042

18-

909044

18-

909760

1/7
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5/17/2021

01/26/2021 Order/Procedural

01/26/2021 Filing Fee

01/29/2021 Post-Judgment Petition

01/29/2021 Filing Fee

02/08/2021 Order/Procedural

02/22/2021 Brief

03/18/2021 Post-Judgment Order

03./22/2Q21 Post-Judgment Order

04/12/2021 Remittitur

04/12/2021 Case Status Update

05/07/2021 Remittitur

77678: Case View

Time and for Rehearing. Nos. 77678/78176 (SC)

Filed Order Granting Motion. Appeilants/cross-

respondents shall have 7 days from the date of this order
to file and serve any petition for rehearing. Any petition for
rehearing must be accompanied by the required filing fee.
No action will be taken on the petition far rehearing
contained within the extension motion. Nos. 77678,'78176.

(SC)
Filing Fee/Rehearing Paid. $150.00 from Robert D Vannah
Chartered. Check No. 8760. (SC)

Filed Appellants' Petition for Rehearing. Nos. 77678/78176
(SC)
Filing fee paid. E-Payment $150.00 from John B. Greene.

Nos. 77678/78176 (SC)
Fiied Order Directing Answer to Petition for Rehearing.
Respondents/Cross-AppeJiants" Answer due; 14 days.

Nos. 77678/78176. (SC$

Filed Respondent/'Cross-Appeiiants' Answer to AppeiSants'
Petition for Rehearing. Nos. 77678/78176 (SC)

Fited Order Denying Rehearing. "Rehearing Denied."
NRAP 40(c). Nos. 77678/78176. EN BANG. (SC)

Filed Corrected Order Denying Rehearing. "Rehearing
Denied." NRAP 40(c). fn1 [The Honorable Abbi Silver,
Justice, did not participate in the decision in this matter.]
Nos. 77678/78176. (SC).

issued Remittitur. (SC)

Remittitur Issued/Case Closed. (SC)

Red Remittitur. Received by District Court Clerk on April
13, 2021. Nos. 77678/78176. (SC)

21-02398

21-02887

21-03673

21-05219

21-08081

21-10361

21-10361

Combined Case View

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=9429E2A915CCE12F648B7FA34829C8F5?csllD=52945 7/7
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Excerpts of Docket for Appeal (NSC 78176)
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5/17/2021 78176: Case View

Wsv^ta

App»i?3te €i3axtt.

Cases

GSSS ®s8r*sn

Paras^a^ .Ssareh

AppsUtite Case Nansig&ment System

Find Case...

Disclaimer: The information and documents avaiiable here should not be relied upon as an official record of action.

Only filed documents can be viewed. Some documents received in a case may not be available for viewing.

Some documents originating from a lower court, including records and appendices, may not be available for viewing.
For official records, please contact the Clerk of the Supreme Court of Nevada at (775) 684-1600.

?)WS{aWiS

Short Caption:

Consolidated:

Lower Court
Case(s):

Disqualifications;

Replacement:

To SP/Judge:

Oral Argument:

Submission Date:

ysi?i>

EDGEWORTH FAiVHLY TR. VS. SIMON C/W
77678

77678*. 78176

dark Co. - Eighth Judicial District - A738444

03/05/2019/'Nitz.Dana

Court:

Related CaseSs):

Classification:

Case Status:

Panel Assigned;

SP Status:

Orat Argument
Location:

How Submitted:

Supreme Court

77678,79821,82058

Civil Appeai - Genera! - Other

Remittitur issued/Case Closed

En Banc

Completed

••'r IPaf^ ^fifWtnaSEm

V^ys&^i SE^UI&S

Date Type Description Pending? Document

02/25/2019 Filing Fee

02/25/2019 Notice of Appeal Documents

02/25/2019 Notice/Outgoing

02/26/2019 Notice of Appeal Documents

03/04/2019 Filing Fee

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=34BOC75E4F7F1EE667767D13DODF95FE?csllD=54613

Filing Fee due for Appeal. (SC)

Filed Notice of Appeal. Appeal docketed in the Supreme
Court this day. (SC)

Issued Notice to Pay Supreme Court Filing Fee. No action
will be taken on this matter unti! filing fee is paid. Due
Date: 10 days. (SC)

Fiied Copy of District Court Minutes. (SC)

Filing Fee Paid, $250.00 from Robert D Vannah
Chartered. Check no. 5355. (SC)

19-08460

19-08462

19-08904

1/7
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5/17/2021 78176: Case View

01/29/2021 Filing Fee

02/08/2021 Order/Procedural

02/22/2021 Brief

03/18/2021 Post-Judgment Order

03/22/2021 Post-Judgment Order

04/12/2021 Remittitur

04/12/2021 Case Status Update

05/07/2021 Remittitur

Filing fee paid. E-Payment $150.00 from John B. Greene.

Nos. 77678/78176(30)
Filed Order Directing Answer to Petition for Rehearing.
Respondents/Cross-Appeilants' Answer due: 14 days.

Nos. 77678/78176. (SC)

Filed Respondent/Cross-AppeIiants' Answer to Appellants'

Petition for Rehearing. Nos. 77678/78176 (SC)

Filed Order Denying Rehearing. "Rehearing Denied."

NRAP 40(c). Nos. 77678/78176. EN BANG. (SC)

Fiied Corrected Order Denying Rehearing. "Rehearing

Denied." NRAP 40(c). fn1 [The Honorable Abbi Silver,
Justice, did not participate in the decision in this matter.]
Nos. 77678/78176. (SC).

Issued Remittitur. (SC)

Remittitur Issued/Case Closed. (SC)

Filed Remittitur. Received by District Court Clerk on April
13, 2021. Nos. 77678/78176. (SC)

21-03673

21-05219

21-08081

21-10361

21-10361

Combined Case View

caseinfo.nvsupremecourt.us/public/caseView.do;jsessionid=34BOC75E4F7F1EE667767D13DODF95FE?csllD=54613 7/7
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Notice in Lieu of Remittitur in Case No. 79821,
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

THE LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON,
Petitioner,
vs.

THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY QF CLARK; AND THE
HONORABLE TtERRA DANIELLE JONES,
DISTRICT JUDGE,
Respondents,
and
EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AND
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,
Real Parties in Interest.

Supreme Court No. 79821
District Court Case No. A738444;A767242

NOTICE IN LIEU OF REMITTITUR

TO THE ABOVE-NAMED PARTIES:

The decision and Order of the court in this matter having been entered on December
30th, 2020, and the period for the filing of a petition for rehearihg having expired and no
petition having been filed, notice is hereby given that the Order and decision entered
herein has, pursuant to the rules of this court, become effective.

DATE: January 25, 2021

Elizabeth A. Brown, Clerk of Court

By: Kaitlin Meetze
Administrative Assistant

ec: James R. Christensen
Vannah & Vannah
Eglet Adams \ Robert T. Eglet
Steven D. Grierson, Eighth District Court Clerk

21-02217
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EXHIBIT QQ
Remittitur in Case No. 77678, issued on April

12,2021
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AND
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,
Appellants/Cross-Respondents,
vs.

DANIEL S. SIMON; AND THE LAW OFFICE
OF DANIEL S. SIMON. A PROFESSIONAL
CORPORATION.
Respondents/Cross-Appellants.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; AND
AMERICAN GRATING. LLC,
Appellants,
vs,

DANIEL S. SIMON; AND THE LAW OFFICE
OF DANIEL S. SIMON, A PROFESSIONAL
CORPORATION,
Respondents.

Supreme Court No. 77678
District Court Case No. A738444

Supreme Court No. 78176
District Court Case No. A738444

REM1TTITUR

TO: Steven D. Grierson, Eighth District Court Clerk

Pursuant to the rules of this court, enclosed are the following:

Certified copy of Judgment and Opinion/Order.
Receipt for Remittitur.

DATE:April12,2021

Elizabeth A. Brown, Clerk of Court

By: Kaitlin Meetze
Administrative Assistant

co (without enclosures):
Hon. Tierra Danielle Jones, District Judge
Vannah & Vannah
James R. Christensen
Christiansen Law Offices \ Peter S. Christiansen

21-10361
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RECEIPT FOR REMITTITUR

Received of Elizabeth A. Brown, Clerk of the Supreme Court of the State of Nevada, the
REMITT1TUR issued in the above-entitled cause, on _APR 1 S 2021

HEATHER UNGERMANN
Deputy District Court Clerk

RECEIVED
APPEALS

Aro u M21 2 21-10861

CLERKOFTHECOURT
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Excerpts of 08-27-2018 Hearing Transcript
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1

2

3

RTRAN

Electronically Filed
6/13/2019 3:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE CO

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

CASE#: A-16-738444-C

DEPT. X

vs.

LANGE PLUMBING, LLC, ETAL,

Defendants.

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

DANIELS. SIMON, ETAL,

Defendants.

)
) CASE#: A-18-767242-C
)
) DEPT. X
)

BEFORE THE HONORABLE TIERRA JONES, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
MONDAY, AUGUST 27, 2018

RECORDER'S TRANSCRIPT OF EVIDENTIARY HEARING - DAY 1

APPEARANCES:

For the Plaintiff:

For the Defendant:

ROBERT D. VANNAH, ESQ.
JOHN B. GREENE, ESQ.

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, ESQ.
PETER S. CHRISTIANSEN, ESQ.

RECORDED BY: VICTORIA BOYD, COURT RECORDER

-1 -

Case Number: A-16-738444-C
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
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11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q - I just mean in time, before the settlement checks with

Viking had even been deposited?

A Correct.

Q All right. And you heard Mr. Vannah give an opening

statement today, sir?

A Yes.

Q Do you recall how he told the Court he wasn't involved in

any of the settlement negotiations?

A I don't recall that. I'm sorry. I don't recall everything he said.

Q We just - you and I can agree that he was the one advising

you of the Lange settlement, because you signed on his letterhead to

consent to settle December the 7th.

A He advised me why to do that, yes.

Q And I have your settlement agreement.

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: Which is Exhibit 5, John. And I'm

looking at page 4, Mr. Greene.

BYMR.CHRISTIANSEN:

Q This is the settlement agreement with Viking?

A You just asked about Lange, sir. The -

Q I did.

A Okay.

Q Now, I'm shifting gears. I want to talk to you about Viking,

too, because if you see paragraph E - do you see that, sir?

A Yes, I do.

Q Who's the lawyers that advised you? Right in the document

-75-
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1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

you signed about settling with Viking?

A It says Robert Vannah, Esquire and John Green, Esquire.

Q Show me where it says Danny Simon.

THE COURT: This is the Viking settlement?

MR. CHRISTIANSEN: It is.

THE COURT: Okay.

BYMR.CHRISTIANSEN:

Q Go ahead.

A On the page that I'm looking at, the fractional page, I don't

see it.

Q And is that your settlement? You and your wife's

settlement? Sorry, signature?

A On the 1st of December, correct.

Q All right. So as early as December 1st, according to Exhibit 5,

you were not relying on Danny Simon's advice, but instead relying on

the advice of Vannah & Vannah when settling the Viking claims, correct?

A When signing contracts, correct.

Q Okay. And I think you've already told me that was the same

situation about five or six days thereafter, when you signed that consent

to settle with Lange on the Vannah & Vannah letterhead, right?

A They had advised me of other things than the settlement,

22 11yes.

23 || Q Okay. And, sir, let's look at Exhibit 90 again. This is your

24 || retainer with Vannah &Vannah. Did you sign a separate retainer

25 || agreement for the lawsuit, where they sued Danny Simon for you?

-76-
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EXHIBIT SS
Second Amended Decision and Order Granting

in Part and Denying in Part, Simon's Motion for

Attorney's Fees and Costs
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AMOR
MORRIS LAW GROUP
Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
Email: smf@momslawgroup.com
Email: rsr@morrislawgroup.com
801 S. Rancho Drive, S~uiteB4
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106
Telephone No.: (702) 474-9400
Facsimile No.: (702) 474-9422

Attorney for Plaintiff
Edgeworth Family Trust and
American Grating, LLC

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
and AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,
vs.

LANGE PLUMBING, LLC; THE
VIKING CORPORATION, a
Michigan Corporation; SUPPLY
NETWORK, INC., dba VIKING
SUPPLYNET, a Michigan
Corporation; and DOES Ithrough
5; and ROE entities 6 through 10,

Defendants

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
) Consolidated with
)
)

CASE NO.: A-16-738444-C
DEFT NO. :X

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST;
and AMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

CASE NO.: A-18-767242-C
DEFT NO.: X

SECOND AMENDED DECISION
AND ORDER GRANTING IN

PART AND DENYING IN PART,
SIMON'S MOTION FOR

ATTORNEY'S FEES AND COSTS
vs.

AA0971
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DANIEL S. SIMON; THE LAW )
OFFICE OF DANIEL S. SIMON, a )
Professional Corporation d/b/a ^
SIMON LAW; DOES 1 through 10;
and, ROE entities 1 through 10,

1.)

)
)

Defendants. )

SECOND MENDED DECISION AND ORDER ON ATTORNEY'S FEES

This case came on for a hearing on January 15, 2019, in the Eighth

Judicial District Court, dark County, Nevada, the Honorable Tierra Jones

presiding. Defendants and movant, Daniel Simon and Law Office of Daniel

S. Simon d/b/a Simon Law ("Defendants" or "Law Office" or "Simon" or

"Mr. Simon") having appeared in person and by and through their

attorneys of record, Peter S. Christiansen, Esq. and James Christensen, Esq.

and Plaintiff Edgeworth Family Trust and American Grating, ("Plaintiff" or

"Edgeworths") having appeared through Brian and Angela Edgeworth, and

by and through their attorneys of record, the law firm. of Vannah and

Vannah, Chtd.

The Court having considered the evidence, arguments of counsel and

being fully advised of the matters herein, the COURT FINDS after review:

The Motion for Attorney's Fees is GRANTED in part, DENIED in

part.

1. The Court finds that the claim for conversion was not

maintained on reasonable grounds, as the Court previously found that

when the complaint was filed on January 4/ 2018, Mr. Simon was not in

possession of the settlement proceeds as the checks were not endorsed or

deposited in the trust account. {Amended Decision and Order on M-otion to

Dismiss NRCP 12(b)(5)). As such, Mr. Simon could not have converted the

Edgeworth's property. As such, the Motion for Attorney's Fees is

GRANTED under 18.010(2)(b) as to the Conversion claim as it was not

AA0972
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maintained upon reasonable grounds, since it was an impossibility for Mr.

Simon to have converted the Edgeworth's property, at the time the lawsuit

was filed.

2. Further, The Court finds that the purpose of the evidentiary

hearing was primarily on the Motion to Adjudicate Lien. The Motion for

Attorney's Fees is DENIED as it relates to other claims. In considering the

amount of attorney's fees and costs, the Court finds that the services of Mr.

James Christensen, Esq. and Mr. Peter Christiansen, Esq. were obtained

after the filing of the lawsuit against Mr. Simon, on January 4, 2018.

However, they were also the attorneys in the evidentiary hearing on the

Motion to Adjudicate Lien, which this Court has found was primarily for

the purpose of adjudicating the lien by Mr. Simon. The Court further finds

that the costs of Mr. Will Kemp, Esq. were solely for the purpose of the

Motion to Adjudicate Lien filed by Mr. Simon, but the costs of Mr. David

dark. Esq. were solely for the purposes of defending the lawsuit filed

against Mr. Simon by the Edgeworths.

3. The court has considered all of the Brunzell factors pertinent to

attorney's fees and attorney's fees are GRANTED. In determining the

reasonable value of services provided for the defense of the conversion

claim, the COURT FINDS that 64 hours was reasonably spent by Mr.

Christensen in preparation and defense of the conversion claim, for a total

amount of $25,600.00. The COURT FURTHER FINDS that 30.5 hours was

reasonably spent by Mr. Christiansen in preparation of the defense of the

conversion claim, for a total of $24,400.00. As such, the award of attorney's .
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fees is GRANTED in the amount of $50,000.00 and costs are GRANTED in

the amount of $2,520.00.

IT IS SO ORDERED this _ day of May, 2021.

DISTRICT COURT JUDGE

Approved as to Form:

MORRIS LAW GROUP

By: /s/STEVE MORRIS
Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
801 S. Rancho Drive, Suite B4
Las Vegas, NV 89106

Attorneys for Plaintiffs
Edgeworth Family Trust and
American Grating, LLC
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EXHIBIT TT
Excerpts from 8/29/2018 Hearing Transcript
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Electronically Filed
6/13/2019 3:22 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COUJ

RTRAN

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
)

EDGEWORTH FAMILY TRUST; )
CASE#: A-16-738444-CAMERICAN GRATING, LLC,

Plaintiffs,

vs.

)
j
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BYMR.CHRISTENSEN:

Q And your vacation was right over Thanksgiving?

A Correct.

Q Okay.

A So, technically, I was back in the office on that Monday.

THE COURT: Which is the 27th? Monday is -- of November?

THE WITNESS: Yeah.

THE COURT: Yeah, Thanksgiving would have been the 23rd,

so that following Monday is the 27th.

THE WITNESS: Okay. So, when I got back from that,

obviously I went - hard to work on all aspects of the Edgeworth case. I

was, you know, negotiating that out, and then obviously preparing my

letter and the proposed retainer that I sent to them attached to the letter.

THE COURT: Okay. But at this point, you have not had any

contact with the Edgeworths since the 17th?

THE WITNESS: I never -- no, I think -- I've had some phone

call --1 had some - I had this meeting and I had a few phone calls after

this meeting, and then I tried to iron this out a few times over my

vacation with him.

I think the last full communication ever with - verbally with

either one of them was the 25th when I was boarding a plane, because I

never had a lot of time to be available because I was always - you know,

if I was on a plane for five hours, I'm unavailable.

So, I tried to get a hold of him, you know, when I could, and I

think the last time was when I was boarding the plane to come home.
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THE COURT: And I think that's what he testified to is that it

was the 25th.

THE WITNESS: 25th, sounds right.

THE COURT: But when you are negotiating the removal of

this confidentiality agreement in the Viking settlement, you have no -

had you been made aware at that point that they had spoken with Mr.

Vannah's office?

THE WITNESS: No.

THE COURT: Okay. And, I'm sorry, Mr. Christensen, that

was Just my question.

MR. CHRISTENSEN: It's your courtroom. Your Honor. You

have a question, you ask it.

THE COURT: I think it's just a little different than a jury trial,

because if I have a question then -

MR. CHRISTENSEN: Absolutely, Judge.

BYMR.CHRISTENSEN:

Q What else did you talk about, if anything, at the November 17

meeting?

A We talked about quite a bit. We talked about the motions

that were on the calendar. We had a motion to compel. There was a

motion to de-designate all of these documents that they were trying to

make confidential in the case. We talked about the pending evidentiary

hearing, how that would be affected. We had all these notices of

depositions. We had depositions in Chicago of this United Laboratories

already set. We had depositions that were noticed by the defense that

-219-
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I. Preface 

 Years ago, the Edgeworths tried to wear the mantle of an aggrieved 

client.  The act has worn thin after the finding that the Edgeworths pursued 

frivolous litigation against Simon was affirmed, after their courtroom 

admission that they frivolously sued to punish Simon, and after they 

received a windfall of $4,000,000.00 from Simon’s efforts.  Unfortunately, 

the barrage of baseless rhetoric from the Edgeworths continues as they 

throw whatever they can think up against the wall in their unending search 

for a post hoc excuse for their sanctioned conduct. 

II. Introduction 

 The Edgeworths seek what they term as the “complete” (emphasis in 

original) file pursuant to NRS 7.055(2).  The problem for the Edgeworths is 

that NRS 7.055 does not apply on its face because Simon has not yet been 

paid.  NRS 7.055(1).  That said, in 2020 Simon voluntarily provided as 

much of the file as could be agreed upon in the face of the binding non-

disclosure agreement (NDA), and other practical and legal concerns. 

The Edgeworths did not raise the file issue after deliberate and 

collaborative discussion in 2020 or 2021.  Instead, in their rush to create 

another dispute, new Edgeworth counsel made direct contact with Simon in 
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an express violation of NRPC 4.21 (Mot., at Ex. C,), and insisted on an 

immediate response to their demands - without any demonstration of what 

the rush was all about or how undue prejudice could result if their latest 

demands were not complied with immediately. 

Simon is willing to act collaboratively on file transfer, but the 

Edgeworths need to recognize there are legal and practical issues at play.  

For example, things might go smoother if the Edgeworths and counsel 

would sign Exhibit A to the NDA, as requested in 2020, and provide a 

rationale on how disclosure today would comply with the NDA.  The fact 

that they refused to sign in 2020, and now act as if there is no NDA (Mot., 

at 4:18-19) establishes that Simon was right to be concerned.  After all, as 

things stand now, Simon is on the hook under the NDA if the Edgeworths 

or their agents violate the NDA. 

In their second motion to release funds from the trust account the 

Edgeworths try to avoid the reality that Simon has filed a counter motion 

and that the money held in trust continues to be in dispute.  The Simon 

position is not unreasonable, it is supported by the pleadings, sound 

 
1 NRPC 4.2 does not have an efficiency exception.  Compare, NRPC 4.2 
with Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7. 
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argument and by expert Will Kemp.  Simon’s position may not be cavalierly 

dismissed out of hand. 

As to the transfer of the trust account, Simon has already stated that 

he has no objection to transfer if the Edgeworths state that they will 

abandon any claim of prejudice that can result from the fact they will no 

longer earn interest on the money held in trust and that they agree counsel 

will not release any money that is in dispute.  Simon, through counsel, 

continues to work on this issue, though admittedly not at the speed 

demanded by new Edgeworth counsel. 

III. The File 

 The Edgeworths ask this court to order Simon to produce the 

complete file pursuant to NRS 7.055. NRS 7.055(1) states: 

1. An attorney who has been discharged by his or her client shall, 
upon demand and payment of the fee due from the client, 
immediately deliver to the client all papers, documents, pleadings and 
items of tangible personal property which belong to or were prepared 
for that client. (Emphasis added.)   

 
In the motion seeking the file, the Edgeworths admit Simon has not been 

paid and that certain sums continue to be disputed by the Edgeworths.  

Accordingly NRS 7.055 does not apply on its face. 
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 Even though the law is solidly on Simon’s side and Simon can assert 

a retaining lien over the complete file, Simon has cooperated to the extent 

possible.  For example, Simon provided tangible items to Vannah when 

asked in 2019.  (Mot., at Ex. F.) 

 In May of 2020 when a different Edgeworth counsel requested the file 

under NRS 7.055, Simon promptly provided the NDA. (Mot., at G.)  

Although the NDA was attached to the email found at Exhibit G to the 

motion, it was not attached as an exhibit to the motion.  The NDA is 

attached hereto at Exhibit 1. 

 The NDA is quite restrictive.  Under §7 of the NDA confidential 

information may only be viewed by a limited pool of people, for limited 

reasons.  (Ex. 1, at 9-10.)  To view confidential information per §7 of the 

NDA, a person must sign an “Acknowledgement and Agreement to be 

Bound” attached to the NDA as Exhibit A.  (Ibid.)  Even counsel must sign.  

(See, e.g., Ex. 1, at 10:5-11.)  The NDA survives the final disposition of the 

case per §13 of the NDA. (Ex. 1, at 13-14.) 

 Instead of simply signing Exhibit A, the Edgeworths cherry pick and 

highlight selected lines from emails sent in the spring of 2020.  For 

example, Simon agreed to deposit confidential items with the court if a 
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motion was filed per 7.055(3).  (Compare, Ex. 2 at page 7 of the email 

string ending May 27, & Mot., at 3:22-24.) 

 Also, and more importantly, the Edgeworths completely ignore the 

impact of the limiting language contained in §7 of the NDA which states 

that the confidential material may only be provided to those: 

“to whom disclosure is reasonably necessary for this litigation 
and who have signed the “Acknowledgement and Agreement to be 
Bound” (Exhibit A).”  (Ex. 1 at 10.)  (Emphasis added.) 

 
The case against Viking and Lange is over, thus there can be no disclosure 

which is “reasonably necessary for the litigation”.  The fact the litigation is 

done which makes disclosure impossible under the NDA.  The Edgeworths 

did not justify their demand considering the limiting language of the NDA. 

 There is also a practical issue.  Seemingly, the Edgeworths are 

demanding production of every attachment to every email sent, no matter 

whether the attachment occurs multiple times in a string, if the same 

attachment was sent multiple times in different emails, or if the attachment 

was already provided.  The request harkens back to the first Edgeworth 

motion for reconsideration in which the Edgeworths frivolously argued that 

a stipulation had been intentionally withheld, when in fact the stipulation 

had been signed by the court, was filed, and was a matter of public record.  

(1st Mot. Recon., at 11:16-13:13 & Opp., at 12:6-14:9.)  Simon does not 
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believe there is any rule that requires production of multiple copies of file 

documents, and the Edgeworths did not provide any authority that a 

document must be copied and produced multiple times.  That said, Simon 

offered to work with new counsel if there was a specific email or area of 

concern (Mot., at Ex. J), instead of taking a collaborative approach a 

motion was filed.   

 The disorganized and indecipherable claim is new.  (Declaration of 

counsel.)  Further, the claim is vague and unsupported.  Again, if a specific 

question or area is identified, Simon is willing to work with any reasonable 

request.  At the current time, the Edgeworths have not disclosed with any 

specificity how they believe the file is not complete (other than the materials 

covered by the NDA).  In fact, the declaration attached to the motion states 

that the claim of incompleteness is based only on information and belief.  

(Declaration of Ms. Solis-Rainey at ¶5 & 6.)  Simon is willing to work with 

new counsel, however, Simon is not able to guess at what counsel believes 

is indecipherable, engage in make work by copying the same document 

many times, or waste further time and money simply because the 

Edgeworths are disgruntled with the $4 million dollars they have received to 

date. 
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 The “Finger for Edgeworth” comment is childish.  Finger is another 

slang term for a drive, just as “thumb” is.  In fact, you can buy “finger” 

drives on Amazon, shaped like index fingers.  The finger file contains a list 

of items on the drive sent to the Edgeworths.   

 The Edgeworths cannot prevail under NRS 7.055 and their motion 

must be denied.  However, Simon will continue to attempt to work with the 

Edgeworths and will respond to any reasonable request. 

IV. Disputed Funds must be Held in Trust 

 Disputed funds must be held in trust.  NRPC 1.15(e) states: 

(e) When in the course of representation a lawyer is in possession of 
funds or other property in which two or more persons (one of whom 
may be the lawyer) claim interests, the property shall be kept 
separate by the lawyer until the dispute is resolved. The lawyer shall 
promptly distribute all portions of the funds or other property as to 
which the interests are not in dispute. (Italics added.) 

 
 The funds held in trust are in dispute.  (Opp. & Countermotion to the 

2nd Mot. for Reconsideration.)  Simon’s position will not be restated here for 

brevity’s sake.  It is enough to state that Simon’s position is well based 

under the law, the pleadings, and the opinion of expert Will Kemp.  

Regardless, Simon will not dispute that the specific amount subject to 

withholding is the face amount of the lien.  If there is an overage it can be 

withdrawn. 
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 The funds remain in dispute until the dispute ends with a final order 

after the time to appeal has run.  Normally this is not a difficult concept.  

The Edgeworths have not provided this court with a legal basis upon which 

it can order disbursal of contested funds.  Therefore, the motion must be 

denied. 

 It appears the Edgeworths have finally dropped their fight against the 

sanction imposed upon them for frivolously suing Simon.  However, the 

sanction money is different from the disputed money held in trust and does 

not impact this motion.   

V. Trust Transfer 

 As Judge Allen Earl used to comment, “the devil is in the details”.  

Simon does not have an objection in principle to moving the money to 

movants’ trust account.  However, Simon does object to the notion that the 

Edgeworths have a right to immediately force a reversal of their own trust 

agreement without some thought and discussion. 

The motion must be denied, the Edgeworths have not provided a 

legal basis upon which this court can order that the agreement between the 

parties to deposit disputed money into a joint bank account can be set 

aside on their say so alone.  The parties entered into a bilateral agreement 
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regarding disposition of the trust money, a unilateral demand to end the 

agreement is not legally enforceable. 

VI. Conclusion 

 NRS 7.055 does not apply thus the motion must be denied.  Simon is 

willing to cooperate on production of the file, but will not violate an NDA, 

nor will Simon waste time on make work. 

 Disputed funds must be held in trust.  The Edgeworths did not 

provide authority upon which this court could order early disbursement of 

funds held in dispute.  Further, there is no undue prejudice because the 

disputed funds are earning interest.  Lastly, if the Edgeworths do not file 

another appeal, then the end of the trust is in sight anyway. 

 There is no legal ground upon which this court can repudiate the 

bilateral agreement to hold the disputed money in an interest-bearing 

account at the bank; therefore, the motion must be denied.  Nevertheless, 

there is no general objection to a transfer of the trust, even if there is no  
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rational reason to do so.  When the details are agreed upon and a new 

bilateral agreement is reached, the transfer will occur. 

DATED this   day of May 2021.  

  /s/ James R. Christensen  

   JAMES CHRISTENSEN, ESQ. 
 Nevada Bar No. 003861 
   601 S. 6th Street 
   Las Vegas, NV 89101 
  (702) 272-0406 
  (702) 272-0415 
  jim@jchristensenlaw.com 
  Attorney for Daniel S. Simon 

 
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I CERTIFY SERVICE of the foregoing Opposition to Motion for 

Release of Funds and Production of File was made by electronic service 

(via Odyssey) this   day of May 2021, to all parties currently shown on 

the Court’s E-Service List. 

      /s/ Dawn Christensen   

an employee of  
 

  

20th

20th
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DECLARATION OF COUNSEL JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN 
 

1. I, JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, make this Declaration of my own 
personal knowledge and under the penalty of perjury pursuant to NRS 
53.045. 
  

2. I represent the Simon Defendant(s) in this matter.   
 

3. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶4:  I sent the 
letter, not Peter Christiansen. 
 

4. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7:  I received 
the call, not Peter Christiansen.  I informed counsel that collaborative 
resolution of the dispute was made difficult when the Edgeworths and 
counsel frivolously sued Simon, did not respond to my December 2017 
offer to work collaboratively, made false statements regarding a so-called 
missing stipulation, and recently accused Simon of extortion when such a 
claim is made impossible by the law of the case.  I also mentioned that acts 
such as violating NRPC 4.2 do not help.  Counsel also leveled an 
accusation of ex parte contact with this Court, which was withdrawn after I 
read EDCR 7.74 to counsel. 
 

5. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶7 & 8:  I 
informed counsel that the Simon counter motion seeking a different 
valuation under quantum meruit could not simply be ignored because the 
counter motion was based on reasonable grounds, including case law, a 
reasonable interpretation of the Supreme Court’s orders and the 
declaration of Will Kemp.  I do not recall counsel raising a contingency fee 
or a flat fee argument.  However, even if made, the argument is a non 
sequitur.  The issue presented to the court is determination of a reasonable 
fee under quantum meruit based on the market approach. 
 

6. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶9:  We 
discussed the claim that the file produced in 2020 was incomplete.  I 
advised that I was not involved in the 2020 discussions.  I asked for 
specifics.  I did not receive specifics beyond the confidential document 
issue.  Counsel did not make the claim that parts of produced file was 
disorganized or indecipherable. 
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7. In response to the Declaration of Solis-Rainey at ¶10:  During 
our call I asked what the sudden rush was and specifically asked for the 
rationale behind the short response window provided in counsel’s first 
letter.  I did not receive a meaningful response.  I do not agree with the 
negative implications which arise from the word “excuses”.  The NDA is 
quite clear and clearly applies.  Pretending the NDA does not exist 
needlessly extends this dispute without basis. 
 

I declare under the penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and 
correct. 
 

Dated this  20th  day of May 2021. 
 
 

/s/ James R. Christensen  

James R. Christensen 
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Case Number: A-16-738444-C

Electronically Filed
5/21/2021 5:41 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT
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INTRODUCTION

Simon's Tactics to Delay and Increase the Burden and Expense of
Litigation

Simon's Opposition gives with one hand what it takes with the other.

On the one hand, Simon acknowledges he "agreed" to transfer the funds into

the Morris Law Group Trust Account yet has done nothing to effectuate it.

Now, he questions even the Court's authority to change the "bilateral"

agreement for deposit of the subject funds that Simon strong-armed his

clients into, despite previously telling another district court (former Judge

Jim Crockett) that the funds were being held on order of the Court {see Ex. M

to Motion for Order to Release Funds/File. Rather than address the

unreasonableness of maintaining that position given the changed nature of

the dispute and the completed appellate proceedings, Simon relies on the

obsolete initial dispute, without offering any authority to support not

transferring the funds in trust, as he recently agreed to do.

With respect to the Edgeworths' case file, Simon again obfuscates

rather than offer a solution, which is simple: produce the Edgeworths' file as

Nevada law requires since adequate security is in place. Ordering

production of the file is well within this Court's authority. Given Simon's

tactics of avoiding his legal obligations, it is no wonder this litigation is now

going into its fourth year.

A. THE CLIENTS' FUNDS SHOULD NOT BE IN SIMON'S

CONTROL

It is ironic that Simon now questions the Court's authority to permit

the transfer of funds because transfer would change what Simon calls the

"bilateral agreement" between the parties. Opp'n at 9:22-26. This is

especially true since Simon has been reporting to another district court that

"the Court ordered that the money should not be distributed pending appeal."

2

AA1029



p^
t?I0

<0
0
0\
00
<Q
< CN|

<~^
•sl-

Z4
u

f-M

^al
<

"t LL

^§C/")

0

^̂
1§y oi^
oc

000

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

See Ex. M to Motion, Excerpts of Simon's Opp'n to Edgeworths' Special Mot.

to Dismiss in Case No. A-19-807433-C at 11:20-21 (emphasis added); id at

27:22-23 ( ... Judge Jones ordered the funds remain in the account"

(emphasis added)); see also Ex. N, Excerpts of Simon's Opp'n to Vannah's

NRCP 12(b)(5) Mot. to Dismiss at 13:9-10 {"Simon is following the District

Court order to keep the disputed funds safe .. ."). The "bilateral" agreement

that Simon is presumably referring to is the joint Special Trust Account

established when he fought to have some control over the "disputed funds."

Simon does not have a duty to "protect funds" as he thoughtlessly claims:

the "disputed funds" would have been just as secure in Vannah's Trust

Account, and Simon's interests would have been adequately protected, but

he would not agree to that, and the Special Trust Account was established to

disburse funds that are in excess of the amount needed to secure his lien.

Despite expressing a willingness to work "collaboratively," Simon has

declined to work with the Edgeworths' counsel, as demonstrated below:

May 3

May 4

May 4

May 11

May 13

May 13

Request to transfer funds and
release uncontested portions.

Telephone discussion, explained
"rush" was to get the matter

before the court if agreement still

could not be reached.

Edgeworths' counsel agreed to

wait till end of week for response

Follow-up request sent to

counsel.

Edgeworths' Motion re Release of

Funds/File filed
After motion filed, letter from
Simon's counsel received saying

"he did not see a fundamental

problem with moving contested

Ex. C to Motion

to Release

Funds/File.

Solis-Rainey
Decl. ISO Motion

at^7

See Ex. Q

Ex. 0 to Motion

Attached hereto

as Ex. Q.
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May 13

May 18

funds ..." and would "contact

[Edgeworths' counsel] next week
on the issue."

Response to Simon, confirming
all bank needed for transfer was

signed letter authorizing it.

Follow-up email sent to Simon's

counsel with sample letter that

would satisfy bank

Attached hereto

as Ex. R

Attached hereto

as Ex. S

To date, nearly three weeks after Morris Law Group's initial request,

Simon has not responded with the letter that would enable transfer of the

trust funds. And although he flippantly says "if there is an average it can be

withdrawn," (Opp'n at 8:26-27) the reality is that given his delays and

positing a false issue about the Court's authority over the account, it is

unlikely anything can be done with the account until the Court orders him

to transfer it so disputed funds can be maintained in the Morris Law Group

Trust Account. The rest can be disbursed to the Edgeworths. This is not an

issue of protecting funds for his lien security: rather, Simon is just trying to

force the Edgeworths to pay him what he wants and give up their appeal

rights in this case and in the pending defamation case Simon filed that is not

before this Court. The Court should not permit him to hold the Edgeworths'

funds hostage any longer.

Simon's suggestion that the Court is without authority to resolve a

dispute about the "bilateral" agreement is meritless. Opp'n at 9:22-26.

Courts resolve such disputes daily; they are often required to adjudicate

competing claims about the meaning and scope of "bilateral agreements."

B. THE ENTIRE CLIENT FILE MUST BE RELEASED

1. Simon's "Retaining Lien" Does Not Immunize Him From

Producing the Edgeworths' Complete Case File.
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Judicial intervention is needed now to stop Simon's ever-increasing

gamesmanship with the Edgeworths' client file. Having presumably

abandoned his earlier claim that NRS 7.055 did not apply because he was

not a "discharged" lawyer, Simon is back to contending it does not apply

because he hasn't been paid. But Simon is more than adequately secured,

and that is all Nevada law requires. Morse v. Eighth Judicial District Court, 65

Nev. 275, 291,195 P.2d 199, 206-07 (1948) (recognizing that "a district court

should have no trouble in fixing a proper amount for bond or other security

and in passing on the sufficiency thereof."); Figliuzzi v. Eighth Judicial Dist.,

Ill Nev. 338,343, 890 P.2d 798, 801 (1995) (recognizing "substitute payment

or security" satisfies statute (citing Morse)).

2. The Non-Disclosure Agreement Does Not Excuse Production of

the File.

Simon should not be permitted to wield the non-disclosure agreement

(NDA) as a sword. The protective order, which has the NDA, as is typical,

was an agreement between "Plaintiffs on the one hand, and Viking

Defendants and Lange ... to prevent the unnecessary disclosure or

dissemination of such confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information."

NDA at 3. The Edgeworth entities are the "Parties" referenced, and are

bound by it. That issue was raised by Simon's counsel in 2020 and resolved.

Simon signed the NDA only as counsel to the Edgeworths. NDA at 14. The

NDA itself contemplates that a Court may be called upon for documents

subject to the NDA, and provides for notice to the other parties, which

Simon has given. See Ex. 2,5/22/20 at 9:40 a.m. Email from K. Works to

Patricia Lee.

Another evasive shift in Simon's NDA argument: in 2020 Simon

claimed that the "confidential" documents had not been destroyed as

provided in the NDA because issues remained open and thus the file was

AA1032
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not closed. Ex. 2; 5/27/20 12:57 p.m. Email from P. Christiansen to P. Lee.

Now, in this Opposition he nonsensically suggests that portions of the file

could never be turned over because "case against Viking and Lange is over,

thus there can be no disclosure ..." Opp'n at 6:11-12. More importantly, this

shifting line of argument is an excuse for acting irresponsibly, as is evident

from the fact the Edgeworths confirmed to Simon's counsel that they were

not looking for confidential Viking or Lange Plumbing data. Motion Ex. 0,

at 1 ("the Edgeworths are not seeking tax returns or proprietary company

information from. Viking or Lange, though I do believe it should be

preserved"). The NDA and the concept of confidentiality simply do not

provide immunity for Simon to avoid the full production required by NRS

7.055.

3. The Alleged Burden of Production is of Simon's Own Making

and Does Not Excuse his Legal Duty to Produce the File.

The "burden" excuse offered by Simon should be rejected. Simon

claimed that he had already produced all email in the case for which his

firm billed. Mot. to Release Funds/File at 5; Ex. 0 to same at 197. And as

pointed out in the exchanges with his counsel, producing complete emails is

much easier than attempting to de-duplicate them. manually. Since Simon

has already gone through all the emails, all he has to do is place the

remaining .pst files onto a hard drive. NRS 7.055 does not allow a lawyer to

choose which portions of the file he must produce merely because the file

was maintained in a way that now makes it inconvenient for the lawyer to

produce it.

4. Simon's Other Excuses are also Wrong

As to his other excuses, Simon is flat wrong. Simon says that beyond

the NDA issue, the Edgeworths "have not disclosed with any specificity how

they believe the file is not complete." Opp'n at 13; but see, Ex. I to Mot. to

AA1033



>£>

0

PH
!?I0
t̂
vn

<-N!
CM

c3 ^-
z ^
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Release Funds/File (providing a non-exhaustive list of missing items); and

Ex. 0 (providing the clarification requested by Simon's counsel as to the

file).

Simon's attempt to analogize the "Finger for Edgeworth" folder to a

thumb drive is interesting, but unhelpful because the file was not produced

on a thumb drive, or a "finger drive," but rather on a portable hard drive.

The content of that folder is also not included on the "list of items on the

drive sent to the Edgeworths." See Ex. T (snapshot of "Finger for Edgeworth"

folder content).

Simon's opposition now says that "Simon agreed to deposit

confidential items with the court if a motion was filed per 7.055(3)." Opp'n at

5-6. In support of that statement, Simon relies on an older portion of an

email thread where one of Pete Christiansen's colleagues said that, instead

of the later email in the thread where Mr. Christiansen abandons that

limitation. Compare 5/22/20 9:40 a.m. email from K. Works to P.Lee; to

5/27/20 2:37 p.m. email from P. Christiansen to P. Lee, both found in

Exhibit 2 to Plaintiff's Opposition (not presented in chronological order). The

May 27 exchanges between Mr. Christiansen and Ms. Lee were the last in

that thread and reflected the final agreement, as evidenced by the fact that a

portion of the file was produced soon after. Id. Simon's claim that emails

were cherry-picked is likewise false (Opp'n at 5:34); the email threads

concerning the back-and-forth in 2020 were excerpted from his own emails;

and Simon's entire exhibits on that point (in the order he offered them

previously) were also cited. See Mot. to Release Funds/File at 3:23. In fact,

Exhibit 2 to Simon's Opposition has the exact emails cited in the Motion, just

combined into one exhibit instead of three as Simon presented them

previously. The exhibits regarding this issue are also a good example of how
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the files were disorganized and often indecipherable, as the Edgeworths

point out in the Motion.

C. CONCLUSION

Simon acknowledges that the Special Trust Account balance is well in

excess of his exorbitant lien. That balance cannot be reasonably maintained

today in view of the law of the case. He is not entitled to be over-secured.

For the reasons set forth in the Motion and in this Reply, the Edgeworths

respectfully ask that the Court enter an order requiring the transfer of the

disputed settlement funds to the Morris Law Group trust account, to be held

pending further order of the Court concerning distribution. Simon has not

presented any credible reason as to why he should be permitted to hold

funds that are in excess of what is necessary to secure his lien until the Court

rules on the amount of the lien, as the Supreme Court has mandated.

The file requested by his former clients, who have been asking for the

complete file since November 2017, should be produced now.

MORRIS LAW GROUP

By: /s/ STEVE MORRIS
Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste. B4
Las Vegas/Nevada 89106

Attorneys for Defendants
Edgeworth Family Trust and
American Grating, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b) and NEFCR 9, I certify that I am

an employee of MORRIS LAW GROUP, and that I caused the following to

be served via the Court's mandatory e-filing and service system to those

persons designated by the parties in the E-Service Master list for the above-

referenced matter: EDGEWORTHS' REPLY IN SUPPORT OF MOTION

FOR ORDER RELEASING CLIENT FUNDS AND REQUIRING THE

PRODUCTION OF COMPLETE CLIENT FILE

DATED this 21st day of May, 2021.

By: /s/TRACIK.BAEZ
An employee of Morris Law Group

9
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EXHIBIT Q
May 13, 2021 Letter to Rosa Solis-Rainey from

James R. Christensen
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James R. Christensen Esq.
601 S. 6th Street

LasVegas,NV89101
Ph: (702)272-0406 Fax: (702)272-0415

E-mail: jim@jchristensenlaw.com

May 13,2021

Via E-Mail

Rosa Solis-Rainey
Morris Law Group
801 S. Rancho Drive Suite B4
LasVegas, NV 89106

Re: Edgeworth v. Viking and related matters

Dear Ms. Solis-Rainey:

Thank you for spending time on the phone with me on May 4 and for being
flexible on the deadline expressed in your May 3rd letter.

As discussed, while I understand the position taken in your letter and most
recent motion for reconsideration, it is not the only position. As explained
during our call and as further explained in the counter motion to adjudicate
the lien on remand, the state of the pleadings and the mandate can be

reasonably interpreted such that the court could find along the lines offered
by Will Kemp. In short, while you take the position the fees should be less,
we take the position the fees should be higher. The funds remain in

dispute.

a e
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However, as it appears clear that the court is confident in its current
findings and the amount of the fee absent further order from the Supreme
Court, I offered to move off our position and disburse funds per the court's
existing orders, with a downward adjustment for the amount charged by Mr.

dark (as opposed to his retainer). While you were resistant to moving off
your position during our call, please give it serious thought as a practical
solution. Any further appeal keeps the funds in dispute.

As discussed, while the details need to be addressed, I do not see a
fundamental problem with moving contested funds to your firm's trust
account. It must be noted that because the contested funds are being

moved from an interest-bearing account to an IOLTA account at your
clients' request, Simon will not be responsible for any alleged delay

claims/damages that would otherwise be offset by earned interest. I will
contact you next week on this issue.

Thank you for your consideration of the above.

Sincerely,

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN, P.C.

/s/Jaw-e^-R. C^r\^t^^^

JAMES R. CHRISTENSEN

JRC/dmc
ec: Client(s)

ge
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EXHIBIT R
May 13, 2021 Letter to James R. Christensen

from Rosa Solis-Rainey

AA1040



MORRIS LAW GROUP
ATTORNEYS AT LAW

801 S. RANCHO DR., STE. B4.
LAS VEOAS, NV asios

TEl-EPHONE; 702/4'y4-9400
FACSlMll-E; 702/474-9422

WESBSEITE; WWW.MORRISLAWGKUUP.CUM

May 13,2021

VIA EMAIL: jim@jchriste.nsen.1,a\
James R. Christensen
601 S. 6th Street
LasVegas/NV 89101

Re: Eighth Judicial District Court Case No. A-16-738444-C

Dear Jim:

I am in receipt of your response/ which you emailed to me shortly after my office

filed the Motion for Order Releasing Client Funds and Requiring the Production of
Complete Client File. As I explained when we spoke on May 4th, the reason I requested

a quick response from you was so that if we could not resolve the issue, we could file a

timely motion and have the Court consider all issues in one proceeding.

While it was clear on May 4th that we would not reach agreement on

disbursement, I waited for a response until the end of the week as agreed/ in. hopes we

could resolve the transfer issue. Your offer to resolve the issue by accepting the Court's

figures was not without strings. I understood that offer was contingent on my clients

giving up their right to pursue the pending motion for reconsideration, and waiving all
appeals/ which was unacceptable.

Nonetheless/1 appreciate that your client is now willing to transfer the funds into

the Morris Law Group Trust account, which is also at Bank of Nevada. I understand

that the transfer requires nothing more than a letter from Mr. Vannah and a letter from

Mr. Simon authorizing the transfer. Given your client's contention that all funds are in

dispute/ we understand our obligation to maintain all funds in our Trust account

pending receipt of Order from the Court authorizing disbursement.

Please send me the letter from your client authorizing the transfer as soon as

possible. I look forward to working with you to get the transfer finalized. As always, if
you have any questions or need additional information/ please do not hesitate to contact

me.

Sincerely/

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT S
May 18, 2021 Follow-up Email to

James R. Christensen with Sample Letter
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Rosa Solis-Rainey

From: Rosa Solis-Rainey

Sent: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 11:48 AM

To: 'jim@jchristensenlaw.com'

Subject: Edgeworth adv. Simon - Transfer of Funds

Attachments: 2021-05-18 Draft Letter to Bank of NV re Transfer Authorization.docx

Jim:

Following up on our exchange last week, and your agreement to transfer the funds, please provide me with a signed

letter authorizing the transfer. I understand from our banker that the signed letter from your side and Mr. Vannah is all

they need to effectuate the transfer, and that I may email the letters. For your convenience, attached is a draft listing

Mr. Simon as the signer on the account, but if I am mistaken and if you are the signer on the account, please change the

name.

This confirms that Morris Law Group agrees to hold all funds in our Trust account pending order from the court

regarding the disposition of the funds.

Best regards, /

Rosa Solis-Rainey

MORRIS LAW GROUP
801 S. Rancho Dr., Ste B4

LASVEGAS, NEVADA 89106

(702) 474-9400 (Main)
(702) 759-8321 (Direct)
(702) 474-9422 (Fax)
rsr@morrislawgroup.com

www.morrislawgroup.com

This e-mail is sent by a law firm and contains information that may be privileged and confidential. If you are not the

intended recipient, please delete the e-mail and notify us immediately.
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May 18,2021

Bank of Nevada
2700 West Sahara Avenue
Las Vegas/ NV 89102

Re: Edgeworth adv. Simon,

dark County Case Nos. A-16-738444-C and A-18-767242-C

Dear Sir or Madam:

This letter constitutes authorization to transfer all of the funds held in
the Joint Trust Account ending in 4141 into IVIorris Law Group's Trust
Account and to close the Joint Trust Account.

Sincerely,

Daniel S. Simon

ec: James Christensen

Rosa Solis-Rainey
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EXHIBIT T
Snapshot of "Finger for Edgeworth" Folder

Content
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